
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LAESCYP 
MEETING

4.00 pm MONDAY, 4TH JUNE, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 
using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to 

the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Heolgerrig Community School and Trelewis 
Primary School 
To meet with the Head teachers of Heolgerrig 
Community School and Trelewis Primary School.

4. Post 16 Home to school transport- Post 
consultation 
To consider the attached report 5 - 46

5. New Estyn Inspection Framework for Schools 
To consider the attached report 47 - 50

6. FIRST DRAFT Scrutiny Report - Review of 
Attendance & Attainment in Primary & Secondary 
Schools 
The Task and Finish Group has completed its 
Draft report. A copy will be sent to Committee 
members under separate cover.

7. Draft Annual Work Programme 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 51 - 62

8. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

9. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

10. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair)
                     C Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: D Chaplin, L Davies, S Jago and S Thomas

Co-optees: C Brown, R Lazell, M Pedro, A Rees, 
A Roberts and R Crowley

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Post-16 Home to School Transport – Following 
Consultation 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report proposes changes to the current post-16 home to school transport 
service. The service is discretionary, and making changes will allow for the 
continuation of a sustainable service and savings to be made.  The options for 
change are summarised below. 

1.2 A business case (Appendix A) has been developed that appraises five options:

1.2.1 Option 1 – The service remains as is.

1.2.2 Option 2 – Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil or to 
the schools that are the nearest suitable that still provide post-16 
education.

1.2.3 Option 3 – Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil, 
Welsh school and Faith school.

1.2.4 Option 4 – Provide post-16 transport at a cost that makes it cost recovering.

1.2.5 Option 5 - Remove service
.

Date Written 23rd May 2018
Report Author Sue Walker & Alyn Owen
Service Area Learning & Transport
Committee Date 4th June 2018

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



1.3 On 13th December 2017, Council approved the start of a public consultation exercise 
regarding the above options for the provision of post-16 home to school transport. 
This report details the outcome of the 12 week public consultation.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 In noting and debating the content of this report, committee members scrutinise the 
approach taken to arriving at the recommended option (option 3) in the Council 
report (Appendix A).

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Following a review of the post-16 home to school transport service it has 
become apparent that the Council is providing free transport for students to 
attend courses over and above the statutory duty. The Council also provides 
transport for pupils to attend schools and colleges out of the County Borough. 
This report puts forward options for the post-16 transport service to become 
efficient, effective and sustainable for the future.

3.2 The Home to School Transport Policy section 8 sets out the provision of post-
16 home to school transport for 2017/18 and states that all students aged 16, 
17 or 18 years on September 1st, who are attending a first course of full time 
study at a college/school, may be entitled to free travel if they are required to 
travel at least three miles in each direction (providing the student is attending 
the nearest appropriate post-16 provider).

3.3 The service is discretionary. There is no statutory duty to provide free home to 
school transport to any post-16 students continuing their studies in 
mainstream, further education or training – whether that be within or outside 
the County Borough. Policy is determined by our Education department whilst 
the provision of transport to those eligible sits within the Public Protection and 
Housing Service.

3.4 As mentioned above in paragraph 3.1, the Council provides free transport to a 
number of schools and colleges for pupils to attend their courses. There are 
currently five colleges and six schools to which pupils from Merthyr Tydfil are 
transported to, these are listed below:

3.4.1 The colleges are:
 The College Merthyr Tydfil
 Coleg Morgannwg (campuses in Aberdare, Nantgarw and 

Ystrad Mynach)
 Bridgend College (Pencoed College)

3.4.2 The schools are:
 Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun (Welsh-medium) - RCT

Page 6



 Lewis Boys School - Pengam
 Lewis Girls School - Ystrad Mynach
 Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni - Blackwood
 St Johns Baptist Church in Wales High School (Faith) - 

Aberdare
 Cardinal Newman R.C. School (Faith) – Pontypridd

3.5 Our current transport policy states the following 12 colleges are where free 
transport will be provided to:

 Coleg Cymoedd (campuses at Aberdare, Rhondda, Nantgarw, Ystrad 
Mynach, Rhymney and Pontypridd)

 Bridgend College (campuses at Bridgend and Pencoed)
 University of South Wales, Art, Design and Technology College 

(campuses at Pontypridd and Newport)
 The College Merthyr Tydfil

3.6 The transport provided to the Colleges is for post-16 learners only, and for 
transport provided to schools the post-16 pupils travel amongst mainstream 
pupils. Currently 155 pupils receive sole post-16 transport and 144 pupils 
travel on mainstream transport.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 Using the agreed Operating Model Design of the Council and the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Wales (WFG) Act 2015, five ways of working (i.e. moving 
long term, preventative and integrated ways of working whilst involving and 
collaborating appropriately to do so), possible options for changing the post-
16 home to school transport provision were developed.

4.2 A report on post-16 home to school transport went to Council on 13th 
December 2017 for approval to undertake a 12 week public consultation 
exercise on the proposed 5 options for changing the service.

4.3 The consultation ran from the 22nd January 2018 to 16th April 2018. 
Four drop-in consultation sessions were held across the County Borough: 

 The College Merthyr Tydfil – 31st January 2018
 Theatr Soar – 22nd March 2018
 Bedlinog RFC – 28th March 2018
 Treharris Library – 28th March 2018

4.4 The process used for consultation took a varied range of methodologies to 
ensure as wide a response as possible. This gave the public an opportunity to 
have their say. This included:

 An online questionnaire designed using the Cwm Taf Community 
Engagement Hub so that people could respond electronically.

Page 7



 Letters were sent to all Primary and Secondary schools within the 
County Borough together with those schools outside the County 
Borough who may be affected. Head Teachers then passed the letters 
to parents via their pupils. Other stakeholders such as the transport 
operators were also sent letters. 

 An online live social media consultation session was held on 11th April 
2018.

 A press release was created, plus several messages were posted on 
social media informing the general public of the consultation and how 
to take part. 

 At each of the consultation venues paper questionnaires were available 
for the public to express their views.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 Following the completion of the 12 week public consultation, results have 
been gathered and analysed. Further detail including the feedback from the 
public consultation can be found below in Appendix A. 

5.2 For each of the 5 options, a risk analysis and a finance analysis exercise has 
been carried out. The results can be found below in Appendix A.

5.3 On the basis of the findings, we believe option 3 is the preferred way forward 
and meets with our objectives as mentioned in 3.1 for the post-16 transport 
service to become efficient, effective and sustainable for the future.

5.4 The report is being presented to scrutiny for challenge, with view to taking it to 
full Council for a decision on 27th June 2018.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 We want to meet with the objectives to streamline the service and ensure it’s 
more sustainable in the future. This will ensure the service can continue to 
provide the required transport to meet the educational needs of our pupils. 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 Following scrutiny, we’d like to take the report to Council on 27th June 2018 
for approval.

7.2 Following Council decision, any policy changes will occur in October 2018 
ready for implementation in the academic year of 2019/20. Pupils starting a 
course in September 2018 will be informed of any changes coming into effect 
the following academic year, so they are fully aware when making their course 
choice. If a student has already started their course before the implementation 
in September 2019, they will be offered free transport to allow them to finish 
their course.

Page 8



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES

8.1 As part of the development of the 5 options and running the consultation 
exercise, we’ve considered how to make the service sustainable for the 
future. We feel option 3 is the best option to achieve this whilst still enabling 
post-16 students to continue with their studies, and to prevent students 
leaving education due to transport provision.

8.2 We’ve involved both the community and pupil voice in the consultation 
exercise. We’ve held various consultation sessions across the County 
Borough, communicated directly with schools, colleges and pupils, and 
encouraged the wider public via Social Media to have their say. The 
consultation ensured that the community had access to the information 
regarding all of the possible options, and had the opportunity to ask questions 
and suggest alternative options.

8.3 We’ve taken a collaborative approach with The College Merthyr Tydfil to 
identify what additional courses could be offered to post-16 students. This 
collaborative working is ongoing and we aim to ensure The College is offering 
the best courses possible going forward.

8.4 So not to remove the service completely, we’ve come up with options that will 
ensure the service can still be accessed while achieving our objective to 
streamline the service.

8.5 By considering the ‘Best Start’ objective, we’ve aimed to make the service 
sustainable for future generations with the options that have been developed. 
Plus we continue to work with The College to ensure they provide the 
education that the learners require.

ALYN OWEN
CHIEF OFFICER FOR REGENERATION
AND PUBLIC PROTECTION

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PTOTECTION

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

List the Background 
documents which have 
been relied on in 
preparing the report. 
E.g. previous minutes of 
relevant committees

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 9



APPENDIX A

Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

FULL COUNCIL REPORT

To:  Mayor, Ladies and Gentlemen

Post-16 Home to School Transport – Following 
Consultation

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 This report proposes changes to the current post-16 home to school transport 
service. The service is discretionary, and making changes will allow for the 
continuation of a sustainable service and savings to be made.  The options for 
change are summarised below. 

1.2 A business case (Appendix 1) has been developed that appraises five options:

1.2.1 Option 1 – The service remains as is.

1.2.2 Option 2 – Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil or 
to the schools that are the nearest suitable that still provide post-16 education.

1.2.3 Option 3 – Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil, 
Welsh school and Faith school.

1.2.4 Option 4 – Provide post-16 transport at a cost that makes it cost recovering.

1.2.5 Option 5 - Remove service.

Date Written 9th May 2018
Report Author Sue Walker & Alyn Owen
Service Area Learning & Transport
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 27th June 2018

Page 10



1.3 On 13th December 2017, Council approved the start of a public consultation exercise 
regarding the above options for the provision of post-16 home to school transport. 
This report details the outcome of the 12 week public consultation.  

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that

2.1 In noting and debating the content of this report, Option 3 be approved for the 
reasons set out in the report: taking in to consideration the advantages and 
disadvantages of each option, the financial implications and the public consultation 
feedback.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Following a review of the post-16 home to school transport service it has 
become apparent that the Council is providing free transport for students to 
attend courses over and above the statutory duty. The Council also provides 
transport for pupils to attend schools and colleges out of the County Borough. 
This report puts forward options for the post-16 transport service to become 
efficient, effective and sustainable for the future. 

3.2 The Home to School Transport Policy section 8 sets out the provision of post-
16 home to school transport for 2017/18 and states that all students aged 16, 
17 or 18 years on September 1st, who are attending a first course of full time 
study at a college/school, may be entitled to free travel if they are required to 
travel at least three miles in each direction (providing the student is attending 
the nearest appropriate post-16 provider).

3.3 The service is discretionary. There is no statutory duty to provide free home to 
school transport to any post-16 students continuing their studies in 
mainstream, further education or training – whether that be within or outside
the County Borough. Policy is determined by our Education department whilst 
the provision of transport to those eligible sits within the Public Protection and 
Housing Service.

3.4 As mentioned above in paragraph 3.1, the Council provides free transport to a 
number of schools and colleges for pupils to attend their courses. There are 
currently five colleges and six schools to which pupils from Merthyr Tydfil are 
transported to, these are listed below:

3.4.1 The colleges are:
 The College Merthyr Tydfil
 Coleg Morgannwg (campuses in Aberdare, Nantgarw and 

Ystrad Mynach)
 Bridgend College (Pencoed College)

3.4.2 The schools are:
 Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun (Welsh-medium) - RCT
 Lewis Boys School - Pengam

Page 11



 Lewis Girls School - Ystrad Mynach
 Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni - Blackwood
 St Johns Baptist Church in Wales High School (Faith) - 

Aberdare
 Cardinal Newman R.C. School (Faith) – Pontypridd

3.5 Our current transport policy states the following 12 colleges are where free 
transport will be provided to:

 Coleg Cymoedd (campuses at Aberdare, Rhondda, Nantgarw, Ystrad 
Mynach, Rhymney and Pontypridd)

 Bridgend College (campuses at Bridgend and Pencoed)
 University of South Wales, Art, Design and Technology College 

(campuses at Pontypridd and Newport)
 The College Merthyr Tydfil

3.6 The transport provided to the Colleges is for post-16 learners only, and for 
transport provided to schools the post-16 pupils travel amongst mainstream 
pupils. Currently 155 pupils receive sole post-16 transport and 144 pupils 
travel on mainstream transport.

3.7 In reviewing the current service delivery, various options have been 
considered; including streamlining the service to make it a more financially 
efficient service that can be sustainable in the future, remaining as is and 
ceasing the service.  These options are detailed in section 5 below.  

3.8 Following Council approval on 13th December 2017, it was agreed that a 12 
week consultation exercise would commence January 2018.  The purpose 
being to engage with the community to involve them in our decision making by 
obtaining their views on our proposed options.  

3.9 The consultation ran from the 22nd January 2018 to 16th April 2018. 
Four drop-in consultation sessions were held across the County Borough: 

 The College Merthyr Tydfil – 31st January 2018
 Theatr Soar – 22nd March 2018
 Bedlinog RFC – 28th March 2018
 Treharris Library – 28th March 2018

3.10 The process used for consultation took a varied range of methodologies to 
ensure as wide a response as possible. This gave the public an opportunity to 
have their say. This included:

 An online questionnaire designed using the Cwm Taf Community 
Engagement Hub so that people could respond electronically.

 Letters were sent to all Primary and Secondary schools within the 
County Borough together with those schools outside the County 
Borough who may be affected. Head Teachers then passed the letters 

Page 12



to parents via their pupils. Other stakeholders such as the transport 
operators were also sent letters. 

 An online live social media consultation session was held on 11th April 
2018.

 A press release was created, plus several messages were posted on 
social media informing the general public of the consultation and how 
to take part. 

 At each of the consultation venues paper questionnaires were available 
for the public to express their views.

3.11 Further detail including the feedback from the public consultation exercise is 
included in this report and is explained below in Appendix 2. 

4.0 RATIONALE

4.1 The reviewing of the post-16 home to school transport service arose as part of 
the budget review exercise set out by Corporate Management Team (CMT). It 
became apparent that post-16 transport could be an area where sustainability 
could be strengthened and savings made. The Council provides post-16 
transport over and above the guidelines. As the service is discretionary there 
is the option to cease provision of the service, as is explained below in section 
5. 

4.2 There are 5 options listed in section 1 and explained further in section 5. Each 
option is viable and has differing revenue savings attributed to them. Officers 
have engaged with service users and the wider public to gauge opinion.

4.3 Using the agreed Operating Model Design of the Council and the Wellbeing of 
Future Generations Wales (WFG) Act 2015, five ways of working (i.e. moving 
long term, preventative and integrated ways of working whilst involving and 
collaborating appropriately to do so), possible options for changing the post-
16 home to school transport provision were progressed.

4.4 The consultation ensured that the community had access to the information 
regarding all of the possible options before any decision is made by the 
Council. It also gave the community the opportunity to ask questions and 
suggest alternative options.

4.5 Following Council decision, any policy changes will occur in October 2018 
ready for implementation in the academic year of 2019/20. Pupils starting a 
course in September 2018 will be informed of any changes coming into effect 
the following academic year, so they are fully aware when making their course 
choice that transport may only be available for the first year of their course. If 
a student has already started their course before academic year 2018/19, 
they will continue to receive free transport to allow them to finish their course.

Page 13



5.0 OPTIONS

5.1 This section details the options with the advantages and disadvantages, 
potential financial savings, risks and public consultation outcomes. Appendix 
1 describes how the options relate to the WFG Act, including the Council 
Wellbeing Objectives.

5.2 Option 1 – (Remain as is)

This option assumes that the current arrangements remain, and there are no 
changes to current provision. 

5.2.1 There will be no revenue savings with this option as there will be 
no change to the service. Also spend could increase if contracts 
are retendered.

5.2.2 The two highest risks that have been identified to implement this 
option are: the Council fails to achieve the revenue savings 
required and travel costs could escalate. To mitigate these risks it 
is advantageous to implement options 2, 3, 4 or 5.

5.2.3 The outcome from the public consultation showed respondents, 
who completed the online questionnaire, voted option 1 as their 
second preferred option. The breakdown by percentage for option 
1 is as follows, with 43.13% giving it a ranking of 1 (most 
preferred) and 14.48% giving it a ranking of 5 (least preferred):

5.2.4 For the respondents who completed a paper questionnaire, 50% 
voted option 1 as their first preferred option.

5.2.5 It is recommended that Option 1 is shortlisted

Advantages Disadvantages
* There will be no immediate change to the 
service that we currently provide.

* Bus operators will continue with 
contracts so no impact on local 
businesses.

* The Council will fail to achieve any short term or 
long term financial savings putting other services 
at risk.

* The cost of running the service in the future is 
likely to increase due to operators/travel fare 
increases.

* We will fail to support our own educational 
establishments.

Page 14



5.3 Option 2 - (Streamline service)

Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil or to the 
schools that are the nearest suitable and who still provide post-16 education. 

5.3.1 The revenue savings in option 2 will be approximately £78,116.93 
per year. This saving will be made by ceasing the transport to 
Ystrad Mynach College, Pencoed College, and Coleg Morgannwg 
campuses in Aberdare and Pontypridd.

5.3.2 The three highest risks that have been identified by implementing 
this option are: the Council fails to achieve the revenue savings 
required, travel costs could escalate and the potential negative 
impact on the Council’s reputation. However some revenue 
savings are made. To mitigate these risks a communication plan 
can be developed and implemented with alternative provision 
provided within Merthyr Tydfil. Talks are already in progress 
between the Authority and The College Merthyr Tydfil regarding 
putting on new courses. For further information on the types of 
courses pupils attend in colleges outside the County Borough, 
please see Appendix 1.

Advantages Disadvantages
* The College Merthyr Tydfil will be 
identified as our main post-16 provider 
and it will be promoted as such.

* Keeps Merthyr Tydfil residents studying 
within the County Borough to benefit our 
Education service. Currently we are 
paying for students to study out of 
County Borough.

* Free transport will continue to the 
nearest Welsh provider which positively 
promotes Welsh-medium education and 
is in accordance with the Education Act.

* Free transport will continue to the 
nearest Faith provider.

* Would achieve some revenue savings.

* The service will be more sustainable in 
the future.

* Fail to achieve long term revenue savings.

* No across the board fairness - Council could 
be seen as favouring Welsh and Faith students 
over other students who wish to attend 
elsewhere.

* Potential impact on coach operators with the 
loss of some post-16 contracts.

* Possible negative feedback from parents and 
schools.

* Restricted choice for learners.

* Could impact on the number of students 
continuing in post-16 education.

* Potential impact on pupils not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET's).

* The cost of running the service in the future is 
likely to increase due to operators/travel fare 
increases.

Page 15



5.3.3 The outcome from the public consultation showed respondents, 
who completed the online questionnaire, voted option 2 as their 
third preferred option. The breakdown by percentage for option 2 
is as follows, with 16.88% giving it a ranking of 1 (most preferred) 
and 14.38% giving it a ranking of 5 (least preferred):

5.3.4 For the respondents who completed a paper questionnaire, 100% 
voted option 2 as their second preferred option.

5.3.5 It is recommended that option 2 is shortlisted

5.4 Option 3 - (Streamline service)

Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil, Welsh 
school and Faith school.

Advantages Disadvantages
* The College Merthyr Tydfil will be 
identified as our main post-16 provider 
and it will be promoted as such.

* Keeps Merthyr Tydfil residents studying 
within the County Borough to benefit our 
Education service. Currently we are 
paying for students to study outside the 
County Borough.

* Free transport will continue to the 
nearest Welsh provider which positively 
promotes Welsh-medium education and 
is in accordance with the Education Act 
1996.

* Free transport will continue to the 
nearest Faith provider.

* Would achieve some savings.

* The service will be more sustainable in 
the future.

* Fail to achieve long term revenue savings.

* No ‘across the board’ fairness - Council could 
be seen as favouring Welsh and Faith students 
over other students who wish to attend 
elsewhere.

* Potential impact on coach operators with the 
loss of some post-16 contracts.

* Possible negative feedback from parents and 
schools.

* Restricted choice for learners.

* Could impact on the number of students 
continuing in post-16 education.
 
* Potential impact on pupils not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET's).

* The cost of running the service in the future is 
likely to increase due to operators/travel fare 
increases.

Page 16



5.4.1 The revenue savings with option 3 will be approximately 
£78,116.93 per year. Any additional savings made from removing 
post-16 students from mainstream travel will be offset by the 
additional transport required to transport the pupils to The College 
Merthyr Tydfil instead (due to the pupils living over 3 miles away).  

5.4.2 The three highest risks that have been identified by implementing 
this option are: the council fails to achieve the revenue savings 
required, travel costs could escalate and the potential negative 
impact on the Council’s reputation. However some revenue 
savings are made. To mitigate these risks a communication plan 
can be developed and implemented with alternative provision 
provided within Merthyr Tydfil. Talks are already in progress 
between the Authority and The College Merthyr Tydfil regarding 
putting on new courses. For further information on the types of 
courses pupils attend in colleges outside the County Borough, 
please see Appendix 1.

5.4.3 The outcome from the public consultation showed respondents, 
who completed the online questionnaire, voted option 3 as their 
first preferred option. The breakdown by percentage for option 3 is 
as follows, with 52.08% giving it a ranking of 1 (most preferred) 
and 12.08% giving it a ranking of 5 (least preferred):

5.4.4 For the respondents who completed a paper questionnaire, 50% 
voted option 3 as their first preferred option.

5.4.5 It is recommended that option 3 is accepted

5.5 Option 4 - (Cost recovery service)

Provide post-16 transport at a cost to pupils which will make the service cost 
recovering.

Page 17



5.5.1 The revenue savings with option 4 will be approximately 
£192,661.53 per year – the savings identified with this option are 
attributable to pupils paying for the service therefore there will be 
no cost to the Council.

5.5.2 The three highest risks that have been identified with 
implementing this option are: parents fail to pay the charge for the 
transport, potential negative impact on the Council’s reputation 
and travel costs could escalate. However all of the revenue is 
saved and the service is cost recovering. To mitigate these risks a 
communication plan can be developed and implemented. 

5.5.3 The outcome from the public consultation showed respondents, 
who completed the online questionnaire, voted option 4 as their 
fourth preferred option. The breakdown by percentage for option 4 
is as follows, with 10.83% giving it a ranking of 1 (most preferred) 
and 35.83% giving it a ranking of 5 (least preferred):

5.5.4 For the respondents who completed a paper questionnaire, 100% 
voted option 4 as their fourth preferred option.

Advantages Disadvantages
* This option will achieve long term 
savings.

* Pupils can continue to be educated in 
the school/college of their choice.

* The service could be more sustainable 
in the future.

* Some pupils are put at a disadvantage if they 
cannot afford the fees.

* Would require an intensive administrative 
function to coordinate, manage the payments 
and recover any arrears.

* A previous attempt at cost recovery led to non-
payments, debt recovery and write off of Council 
debts.

* Could impact on the number of students 
continuing in post-16 education. 

* Potential impact on pupils not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET's).

* Possible negative feedback from parents and 
schools.

* The cost of running the service in the future is 
likely to increase due to operators/travel fare 
increases.

Page 18



5.5.5 It is recommended that option 4 is shortlisted

5.6 Option 5 – (Remove the service)

There will be no free post-16 transport service provided.

5.6.1 The revenue savings with option 5 will be approximately 
£192,661.53 per year. Additional savings will be made from 
removing post-16 students from mainstream travel and the 
remaining travel reconfigured (it is difficult to identify exact saving 
at this time). 

5.6.2 The three highest risks that have been identified by implementing 
this option are: the potential negative impact on the Council’s 
reputation, risk to learners continuing in further education and the 
potential impact on the number of young people not in education, 
employment or training (NEETS). To mitigate these risks a 
communication plan can be developed and implemented with 
alternative provision provided within Merthyr Tydfil. Talks are 
already in progress between the Authority and The College 
Merthyr Tydfil regarding putting on new courses. For further 
information on the types of courses pupils attend in colleges 
outside the County Borough, please see Appendix 1.

5.6.3 The outcome from the public consultation showed respondents, 
who completed the online questionnaire, voted option 5 as their 
fifth preferred option. The breakdown by percentage for option 5 is 
as follows, with 12.71% giving it a ranking of 1 (most preferred) 
and 81.67% giving it a ranking of 5 (least preferred):

Advantages Disadvantages
* Will achieve long term savings.

* The service will be more sustainable in 
the future.

* Could impact on the number of students 
continuing in post-16 education.

* Potential impact on pupils not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET's).

* Possible negative feedback from parents and 
schools.

* No support for post-16 Welsh or faith based 
education.

Page 19



5.6.4 For the respondents who completed a paper questionnaire, 100% 
voted option 5 as their fifth preferred option.

5.6.5 It is recommended that option 5 is shortlisted

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

5.1 The financial savings that will be achieved as a result of implementing this 
business case is £78,116.93 (Option 3). A detailed breakdown of the current 
costs of the post-16 provision and the potential savings each option would 
bring are shown below in the Business Case Appendix 1.

5.2 The savings attributed to each option are:

6 EQUALITY IMPACT  ASSESSMENT

6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form has been prepared for the 
purpose of this report. A breakdown of the impact on the protected 
characteristics for all options is shown in the form. The form can be accessed 
on the Council’s website/intranet via ‘Equality Impact Assessment’ link.

6.2 For the recommended option (Option 3) it has been deemed that there will be 
a neutral impact on 10 of the 11 protected characteristics including Religion 
and Belief characteristic as well as the Welsh Language characteristic as the 
transport to these schools will remain. There could be a negative impact on 
the Age characteristic as some post-16 courses that pupils wish to attend may 
not be provided by The College Merthyr Tydfil and those pupils may not be 
entitled to post-16 transport to an alternative school/college. Taking this in to 
consideration, the Local Education Authority and The College Merthyr Tydfil 
look to work together to establish learner requirements so more course 
choices can be offered.

Page 20



SUE WALKER
CHIEF OFFICER FOR LEARNING

ALYN OWEN
CHIEF OFFICER FOR REGENERATION

LISA MYTTON
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

GERAINT THOMAS
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Equality Impact 
Assessment

November 2017 Business Change Team

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Consultation has been undertaken with the Corporate Management Team in respect 
of each proposal(s) and recommendation(s) set out in this report. 

Page 21



APPENDIX 1 - Post-16 Home to School Transport Business Case

Business Case – Post 16 Home to School Transport

Project Title Post-16 Home to School Transport

Date (Insert Version Date) May 2018

Lead Officer(s) Sue Walker and Alyn Owen

Service Area Learning and Transport

Purpose of the Business Case

Project Background
In the sections below, please give the reasons identified for this project to take place, addressing the Council's 
Wellbeing Objectives (Wellbeing of Future Generation Act, 2015) and what has encouraged the development 
of this business case?  Consider what approach has been taken place against the 5 Ways of Working e.g. - 
take an integrated approach when setting and taking steps to meet our Wellbeing Objectives; work with others 
in a collaborative way to find shared sustainable solutions; involve people in the decisions that affect them, 
reflecting the diversity of our communities.  Please build on Project Concept.

The purpose of this project is to outline & appraise proposed changes to the post-16 home to 
school transport service. This business case aims to explore potential alternatives to the current 
way the service is delivered.

The provision of the post-16 home to school transport service is managed by the Public 
Protection and Housing Service, and the policy is determined by our Education department. The 
current policy for the provision of home to school transport 2017/18 states that all students aged 
16, 17 or 18 years on September 1st, who are attending a first course of full time study at a 
college/school, may be entitled to free travel if they are required to travel at least three miles in 
each direction providing the student is attending the nearest appropriate post-16 provider.

The provision of post-16 transport is funded out of core grant funding. As of the 17/05/2018 the 
total cost of post-16 transport was £192,661.53 for 299 pupils. The cost of sole post-16 transport 
was £113,262.83 for 155 pupils. The Council also transport post-16 pupils amongst mainstream 
students at a cost of £79,398.70 for 144 pupils. This cost is worked out as the cost for each post-
16 pupil and is not the full cost of running the mainstream service.

There are 5 Colleges we currently provide free post-16 travel to:
* The College Merthyr Tydfil
* Coleg Morgannwg (campuses in Aberdare, Nantgarw and Ystrad Mynach)
* Bridgend College (Pencoed College)

There are 6 Schools we currently provide free post-16 travel to (amongst mainstream pupils):
* Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun (Welsh-medium)
* Lewis Boys School

Page 22



* Lewis Girls School
* Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhymni
* St Johns Baptist Church in Wales High School (Faith)
* Cardinal Newman School 

Business Need / Case for Change

Post-16 home to school transport is a discretionary service however the Council does have a duty 
to consider access to education for all learners. The Council's transport policy currently states we 
will provide transport for post-16 learners subject to the proviso they attend their nearest course 
provider and that the provider is over 3 miles from home. However there is no statutory duty to 
provide free transport to any post-16 students continuing their studies in mainstream, further 
education or training - whether that be within or outside the County Borough. Plus providing free 
transport for post-16 learners to attend a specific provision (i.e. Welsh or Faith education) is also 
discretionary.

Relevant legislation in the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 states that Authorities only have 
to assess the travel needs of post-16 learners and determine if there are adequate travel 
arrangements (bus or train services, bicycle and walking routes) available for students to gain 
access to education.

Coach operator contracts

Current coach operator contracts are up for renewal in July 2018. Operators have already implied 
that costs to renew contracts will increase as some operators are currently running at a loss. 
Therefore the cost to run the service is expected to increase further for the next academic year.

Cost Recovery

An option to make the service cost recovering has been explored (see options section). The 
charges each pupil would need to make can be found in the finance section. These charges range 
from £523 to £3,878 per pupil per year. To run a cost recovering service, it should be noted that it 
would require an intensive administrative function to coordinate and manage the payments.
A risk with running this type of service is non-payment. It would require a large amount of 
administrative work to try to recover arrears and in most cases may not result in successfully 
retrieving the money.
In 2012/13 a payment service was run for mainstream transport. The service allowed parents to 
buy a seat if they didn't already receive free transport (as under the 2 mile threshold). It only lasted 
for one year as a large number of parents did not pay. The administrative work that was required 
was intensive. After failed efforts to retrieve the money, most debts just had to be written off.

Welsh-Medium Education

As a Council, we have a legal duty to promote access to Welsh-medium education. However as 

Page 23



explained above, post-16 transport is a discretionary service. 
Legislation in the Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008 states we need to assess the travel 
needs of learners. In assessing the needs of Welsh learners, there is no Welsh secondary and 
post-16 education provider in Merthyr Tydfil and so the nearest suitable school is Ysgol Gyfun 
Rhydywaun in RCT. As we already provide transport for mainstream to Rhydywaun, post-16 has 
continued.

The Education Act 1996 - Section 354 states it is the local authority's policy that every child should 
have the opportunity to learn and use the Welsh language. Our School Admissions policy 2018/19 
names Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun as the school to continue their education after primary school.

Faith education

We currently provide post-16 transport for students to attend faith schools out of the County 
Borough - St Johns Baptist Church in Wales High School (Aberdare) and Cardinal Newman RC 
School (Pontypridd). However the Council has no legal duty to provide post-16 transport for 
students to attend a faith school. 
Free post-16 transport to Cardinal Newman was an agreement after the removal of sixth form 
provision at Bishop Hedley High School. Students choose to go to St Johns because it classes 
itself as a Welsh Faith provider; however it is not currently listed in our School Admissions policy.

Implementation

For all of the proposed options, changes cannot be implemented until Academic year 2019/20 and 
any savings will not be realised until April 2020. However, students approaching us for free 
transport for academic year 2018/19 can be told of any changes to policy that will be coming in 
2019/20 which may influence their choice of school/college. We expect to see a drop in pupil 
numbers wishing to attend schools/colleges where free-transport will only be available for the first 
year of their course.
Any changes to the policy will be implemented in 2019. If a student has already started their 
course before academic year 2018/19, they will be offered free transport to allow them to finish 
their course.

There are 5 options for consideration within this business case:

* Option 1 - Remain as is
* Option 2 - Streamline service (Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil
   or to the schools that are the nearest suitable and who still provide a sixth form).
* Option 3 - Streamline service (Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil,
   Welsh school and Faith school)
* Option 4 - Cost Recovering service (Provide post-16 transport at a cost that makes it cost
   recovering)
* Option 5 - Remove service

These options will be explored in more detail in the options section below.

Page 24



Consultation & Engagement
Following a decision by Council on 13th December 2017 to go to public consultation, a 12 weeks 
consultation was held. 

The public consultation ran from 22nd January 2018 to 16th April 2018. Four consultation sessions 
were held at The College Merthyr Tydfil, Theatr Soar, Bedlinog RFC and Treharris Library. An 
online live social media consultation session was also held. 

Feedback

 Via the Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub, we received a total of 480 responses. 

 Via paper questionnaires, we received a total of 6 responses.

Further detail including the feedback from the public consultation exercise is explained below in 
Appendix 2. 

HR Implications
No staff would be affected by removal of post-16 transport at this time.

Corporate Fit and Project Drivers
Please indicate where the project meets our Wellbeing objectives and/or service objectives.
Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (2015)  Y

Social Services & Wellbeing  Act (2014) N

Driven by External Funding Opportunity N

Driven by Service Benefits / Resilience Y

Driven by Savings Opportunities Y

Other (please state): N/A

Options:
Provide information and data regarding the proposed service changes.  In this section please refer to the nine 
Wellbeing objectives.  

1. Option 1 – Remain as is – this option assumes that the current arrangements remain 
and there are no changes to current provision

Option 1 description

There is no change to the existing arrangements.

Page 25



Advantages

 There will be no immediate changes to the service that we currently provide.
 Bus operators will continue with contracts so no impact on local businesses.

Disadvantages

 The Council will fail to achieve any short term or long term financial savings putting 
other services at risk.

 The cost of running the service in the future is likely to increase due to 
operators/travel fare increases.

 We will fail to support our own educational establishments.

2. Option 2 – (Streamline service) Provide free post-16 transport only to The College 
Merthyr Tydfil or to the schools that are the nearest suitable and who still provide a sixth 
form.

Option 2 Description

Streamline the service so that we only provide free post-16 transport to pupils attending The 
College Merthyr Tydfil or to the schools that are the nearest suitable and who still provide a 
sixth form, with the caveat that the provider is more than 3 miles from home. Free transport 
will no longer be available for learners who wish to attend a different school/college.

The current school transport policy will be changed to say similar to below:
"Where the student's current school provides sixth form, free post-16 transport will be 
provided to that school. Where the student's current school does not provide a sixth 
form,  The College Merthyr Tydfil is the nominated provider and free transport will be 
provided to this college only (if over 3 miles from home)."

Advantages

 The College Merthyr Tydfil will be identified as our main post-16 provider and it will 
be promoted as such.

 Keeps Merthyr Tydfil residents studying within the County Borough to benefit our 
Education service. Currently we are paying for students to study in other County 
Boroughs.

 Free transport will continue to the nearest Welsh provider which positively promotes 
Welsh-medium education and is in accordance with the Education Act.

 Free transport will continue to the nearest Faith provider.
 Would achieve some revenue savings.
 The service will be more sustainable in the future.

Disadvantages

 Fail to achieve long term revenue savings.
 No ‘across the board fairness’ - Council could be seen as favouring Welsh and Faith 

students over other students who wish to attend elsewhere.
 Potential impact on coach operators with the loss of some post-16 contracts.

Page 26



 Possible negative feedback from parents and schools.
 Restricted choice for learners.
 Could impact on the number of students continuing in post-16 education.
 Potential impact on pupils not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET's).
 The cost of running the service in the future is likely to increase due to 

operators/travel fare increases.

3. Option 3 – (Streamline service) Provide free post-16 transport only to The College 
Merthyr Tydfil, Welsh school and Faith school

Option 3 Description

Streamline the service so that we only provide free post-16 transport to pupils attending 
either The College Merthyr Tydfil, Welsh school (Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun) or Faith school 
(St Johns Baptist Church in Wales or Cardinal Newman R.C), with the caveat that the 
provider is more than 3 miles from home.
Free transport will no longer be available for learners who wish to attend a different 
school/college.

Advantages

 The College Merthyr Tydfil will be identified as our main post-16 provider and it will 
be promoted as such.

 Keeps Merthyr Tydfil residents studying within the County Borough to benefit our 
Education service. Currently we are paying for students to study in other County 
Boroughs.

 Free transport will continue to the nearest Welsh provider which positively promotes 
Welsh medium education and is in accordance with the Education Act 1996.

 Free transport will continue to the nearest Faith provider.
 Would achieve some savings. The service will be more sustainable in the future.

Disadvantages

 Fail to achieve long term revenue savings.
 No ‘across the board fairness’ - Council could be seen as favouring Welsh and Faith 

students over other students who wish to attend elsewhere.
 Potential impact on coach operators with the loss of some post-16 contracts.
 Likely negative feedback from parents and schools.
 Restricted choice for learners.
 Could impact on the number of students continuing in post-16 education. 
 Potential impact on pupils not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET's).
 The cost of running the service in the future is likely to increase due to 

operators/travel fare increases.

4. Option 4 – (Cost recovery service) Provide post-16 transport at a cost that makes it cost 
recovering

Page 27



Option 4 Description

Continue to run the service, but charge pupils to make it a cost recovering service.

Advantages

 This option will achieve long term savings.
 Pupils can continue to be educated in the school/college of their choice.
 The service could be more sustainable in the future.

Disadvantages

 Some pupils are put at a disadvantage if they cannot afford the fees.
 Would require an intensive administrative function to coordinate, manage the 

payments and recover any arrears.
 Previous attempt at cost recovery led to non-payments, debt recovery and write off of 

Council debts.
 Could impact on the number of students continuing in post-16 education. 
 Potential impact on pupils not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET's).
 Likely negative feedback from parents and schools.
 The cost of running the service in the future is likely to increase due to 

operators/travel fare increases.

5. Option 5 – (Remove the service) 

Option 5 Description

Remove the service. Free post-16 transport will no longer be run as a service.

Advantages

 This option will achieve long term savings.
 The service could be more sustainable in the future

Disadvantages

 Could impact on the number of students continuing in post-16 education.
 Potential impact on pupils not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET's).
 Likely negative feedback from parents and schools.
 No support for Welsh or faith based post-16 education

Page 28



Project Objectives and Critical Success Factors - Post-16 Home to School Transport

The tables below identifies whether each option will meet the project objectives, critical success factors, wellbeing objectives and project outcomes.  Each 
option has then been scored to identify the number of objectives and critical success factors the option meets. The objectives and outcomes will need to be 
SMART (Specific; Measurable; Achievable; Realistic; Time-bound)

Project Objectives

Critical Success Factors

P
age 29



Wellbeing Objectives

P
age 30



Project Outcomes

Outcomes

Please describe the outcomes 
below (these should include the 
criteria for success, i.e. what will 
you see?):

Option 1

Remain As Is

Option 2
Streamline 

Service

Option 3
Streamline 

Service

Option 4

Cost 
Recovery

Option 
5

Remove

Outcome Students can study more post-16 
courses within Merthyr Tydfil

N Y Y ? Y

Outcome The service becomes more efficient 
and sustainable for the future

N Y Y ? Y

P
age 31



Risk Assessment – Post-16 Home to School Transport

Below are the potential risks and barriers, scored against the various options.

Risks

P
age 32



Barriers

P
age 33



Summary

P
age 34



Finance

Below are the current costs of the post-16 provision for academic year 2017/18, and the costs associated with the various options (as of 
17/05/2018):

P
age 35



P
age 36



Please note:
With option 3, it is unlikely additional savings (on top of the £78,116.93) will be made by removing the post-16 pupils from 
the mainstream transport as transport would then be required to The College Merthyr Tydfil (due to the pupils living over 3 
miles away). 

With option 5, the saving figure is calculated by identifying how much the transport costs and dividing it by the number of 
students using the service. For mainstream, this means the total cost divided by the total number of pupils, then multiplying 
this by the number of post-16 pupils. In reality it is difficult to identify an exact saving by removing post-16 pupils from 
mainstream transport as it doesn’t automatically mean a reduction in bus size. Potentially for some routes, the bus could be 
re-routed and therefore less or smaller buses are required. However this may not be the case for all routes so the bus costs 
stay the same. 

Mid-term Financial Plan Figures

Below are the Mid-term Financial Plan figures which identify the savings from removal of some post-16 provision 
(implementing option 2):

P
age 37



Please note:
In academic year 2018/19 we are unlikely to see any savings as any changes made to the policy in 2018 cannot be 
implemented until academic year 2019/20. However some savings can be made in 2018/19 by issuing train passes to the 8 
students currently travelling to Nantgarw rather than putting on a bus. Savings shown above for this change are only partial 
year savings as it applies to September 2018 – March 2019. It is impractical to switch to train passes for the other students 
due to the location of the college they are attending. 

In 2019/20, from April 2019 – July 2019 those students still studying until the end of the academic year will continue, and 
then removal of the service will happen September 2019.  

In 2020/21 full year savings can be seen as the services will have ceased. There may still be some deductions assuming 
that the students relocate to The College Merthyr Tydfil and therefore live over 3 miles away so qualify for free transport. 
These students would be given train passes. 

Post-16 Courses in Merthyr

P
age 38



Discussions with The College Merthyr Tydfil have started taking place. The aim is to firstly establish what courses pupils are 
attending outside the County Borough and whether the courses are currently available in The College. If courses are not 
currently available, talks are being held to establish whether The College could accommodate them from September 2019.  

For this current academic year, 42 pupils are attending courses outside the County Borough. 18 of these pupils are 
accessing courses currently provided by The College Merthyr Tydfil. The remaining 24 pupils are accessing courses 
currently unavailable in The College.

Below is the breakdown of the courses the 42 pupils are attending outside the County Borough, along with information on 
whether the course could be run by The College in the future.

Of these courses, The College is giving careful consideration to providing Electrical Installation and Plumbing from 
September 2019 and there are currently 10 pupils who access these courses. This results in 24 pupils on the list above who 

P
age 39



would not be accommodated in The College. These pupils are accessing courses, that for infrastructure and location 
reasons, The College would not be able to provide.

The College Merthyr Tydfil will take a decision on courses to be run from September 2019 around November 2018. 

P
age 40



APPENDIX 2 - Post-16 Home to School Transport Public Consultation Feedback

The Consultation Process

The proposal is to change the current post-16 provision to become efficient, effective and 
sustainable. In a 12 week public consultation exercise, we put forward to the public five 
options to be considered. These options are:

1. The service remains as is.
2. Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil or to the schools 

that are the nearest suitable that still provide post-16 education.
3. Provide free post-16 transport only to The College Merthyr Tydfil, Welsh school and 

Faith school.
4. Provide post-16 transport at a cost that makes it cost recovering.
5. Remove the service.

With this full range of options, we wanted to understand the views of the people of Merthyr 
Tydfil on the potential change to the post-16 transport service. A project team was 
developed to deliver the consultation. The team comprised of officers from Education, 
Transport, Corporate Communications and Business Change. The team were responsible 
for all aspects of the consultation.

Letters inviting people to take part in the consultation were sent out to all Primary and 
Secondary schools within the County Borough, including those schools outside the County 
Borough who may be affected. Head Teachers then passed the letters to parents via their 
pupils. Other stakeholders such as the transport operators were also sent letters. A press 
release was created, plus several messages were posted on social media informing the 
general public of the consultation and how to take part. 

The consultation lasted for 12 weeks, running from 22nd January 2018 to 16th April 2018. It 
was made available through many avenues: online, consultation events and a live social 
media session.  

An online questionnaire was designed using the ‘Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub’ 
so people could take part in the consultation electronically. Paper questionnaires were also 
made available at the consultation sessions and by request from Corporate 
Communications.

A live social media session was held where officers answered questions from the 
community.

Officers from Transport, Education and Corporate Communications were present at all 
consultation venues. A welsh speaking officer was also on hand to translate in Welsh if 
required.

Public Consultation Questionnaire

A series of consultation questions were developed, which were as follows:

Page 41



1. Merthyr Tydfil CBC is proposing the following five options in changing the current 
post-16 home to school transport provision. By entering numbers 1-5 (1 = Most 
preferred and 5 = Least preferred). Please rank the options according to your 
preference:

2. If you have any comments or suggestions on options we may have not considered 
please comment below:

3. Are you:
 A pupil
 Parent/carer
 Transport provider
 Other

The public were also provided with an options document which details the advantages and 
disadvantages of each option. They were encouraged to read this prior to completing the 
questionnaire.

Feedback from the Public Consultation

Respondents were asked to use the questionnaire to respond formally to the consultation; 
via the Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub or by paper copy.

Consultation Responses

In total 487 responses were received.

 480 received via the online questionnaire.
 7 received via the paper questionnaire.

Online Questionnaire Results

Respondents were asked to rank the five options in accordance to their preference (1 = 
Most preferred and 5 = Least preferred) in a grid as shown below. They were asked to mark 
the circle against each option to show how they ranked them. When filling it in electronically 
on the Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub, two circles in the same column could not be 
chosen i.e. two options could not be given a score of 1.

Page 42



After the 12 week consultation, the results from the Cwm Taf Community Engagement Hub 
showed respondents voted in the following way:

The results show the percentage of people who ranked each option. For each option the 
100% is split between the 5 different rankings, showing whether that option was most 
preferred or least preferred.

For example – For option 1, 43.13% of people gave it a rating of 1, 8.13% gave it a rating of 
2 and so on.

Looking at the result above for the online questionnaire, we can see Option 3 was the most 
preferred with over 52% of people ranking it as their most preferred option. We can see 
option 5 was the least preferred with over 81% of people ranking it as their least preferred 
option.

Page 43



Paper Questionnaire Results

Of the seven paper questionnaires received, three had to be discarded from the vote as the 
forms were filled in incorrectly. However their comments have been taken in to 
consideration. Of the four remaining questionnaires, the results were as follows:

Looking at the result above for the paper questionnaires, we can see Option 1 and 3 were 
the most preferred with 50% of people ranking it as their most preferred option. We can see 
option 5 was the least preferred with 100% of people ranking it as their least preferred 
option.

Of the 480 respondents who completed the online questionnaire, 442 answered the 
question asking who they were; pupil, parent, transport provider or other. Below is the 
breakdown according to the type of respondent they were:

Public Consultation Feedback

The responses have been analysed to identify views and concerns raised by respondents 
in the questionnaire feedback, consultation sessions and live social media session. 

Page 44



Respondents were asked to provide any comments or suggestions regarding the proposed 
changes to post-16 travel. Of primary concern to a large proportion of respondents is the 
risk to Welsh-medium education. The reason can be broadly summarised into several key 
areas of concern:

 Loss of Welsh-medium education: As there is currently no Welsh secondary and 
post-16 education provider in Merthyr Tydfil, pupils wishing to continue their studies 
in the medium of Welsh are provided with free travel to the nearest Welsh school 
which is Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun in RCT. Removing free transport to this provision 
is considered by many a huge detriment to their children’s education following 
Primary school.

 Impact on the Welsh language: The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 puts 
the Welsh language on an equal footing with the English language in Wales. Along 
with Welsh Government’s ambition for “enabling the Welsh language to thrive”, the 
public consider a change to the post-16 transport provision to the Welsh school as a 
negative impact on the future of the Welsh language. 

 The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) places each Local Authority in Wales 
with a statutory duty to plan and demonstrate clear actions and steps to maximise 
opportunities for Welsh-medium education. It is felt by most that by removing the free 
post-16 transport, it is taking the opportunity away for pupils to be educated in the 
language of their choosing. 

Pupil Voice

In addition to the 12 week consultation events, we were keen to receive feedback from 
pupils so we could ensure that their views had been heard. The schools in support of pupil 
voice asked their pupils their views regarding the proposed changes and provided them 
with the consultation questionnaire, along with detail on the options being considered.

Unfortunately no schools came back to us with pupil voice outcomes in the timescale set, 
despite several requests from the team. Some schools advised their pupils to complete the 
online questionnaire during the public consultation period, so these pupils may have voiced 
their opinion this way. As mentioned in the consultation responses section above, 40.72% 
of respondents who completed the online questionnaire were pupils.

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

New Estyn Inspection Framework for Schools
Fframwaith Arolygu Newydd Estyn ar gyfer 
Ysgolion

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to update LAESCYP Scrutiny members on the changes 
in the Estyn inspection reporting framework for schools. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 This report is discussed and noted

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 In September 2017, Estyn implemented new arrangements for inspecting all 
schools, independent specialist colleges, pupil referral units and work-based 
learning providers. Schools within Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council will 
be inspected using this new framework. Learners and their progress continue 
to be at the heart of all Estyn inspections. Estyn will focus more strongly on 
what is working well and what needs to improve. Inspections will reflect the 
transformation that is happening in learning and teaching.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 Schools received 20 days’ notice of inspection.

Date Written 15th May 2018
Report Author Joe Colsey
Service Area LAESCYP
Committee Date 4th June 2018

Page 47

Agenda Item 5



4.2 The inspection team looked at three key questions (KQ):
 KQ1: How good are outcomes?

o Standards
o Wellbeing

 KQ2: How good is provision?
o Learning experiences
o Teaching
o Care, support and guidance
o Learning environments

 KQ3: How good are leadership and management?
o Leadership
o Improving quality
o Partnership working
o Resource management

4.3 An overall judgment was provided for current performance and prospects for 
improvement.

4.4 There were four judgements for each inspection area:
o Excellent: Many strengths including significant examples of sector 

leading practice.
o Good: Many strengths and no important areas requiring significant 

improvement. 
o Adequate: Strengths outweigh areas for improvement.
o Unsatisfactory: Important areas for improvement outweigh strengths.

4.5 There were four levels of follow-up activity:
o Local authority monitoring
o Estyn monitoring
o Significant improvement
o Special Measures

4.6 If sector leading practice is identified by the inspection team, the school 
leaders will be asked to produce a case study in relation to the sector leading 
aspect. This case study will be published on the Estyn website as a means of 
sharing best practice.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 Schools will receive 15 days’ notice of inspection. The school’s self-evaluation 
report will be the starting point of the inspection. The inspection team will look 
at how well the provider knows its own strengths and areas to improve.

5.2 Inspection reports will be shorter; they will focus on the most relevant and 
important aspects of the school.

5.3 Many aspects will only be included by exception, which means they will only 
be included if they are particularly strong or particularly weak.

Page 48



5.4 The inspection team will look at five inspection areas (IA):
o IA1: Standards
o IA2: Wellbeing and attitudes to learning
o IA3: Teaching and learning experiences
o IA4: Care, support and guidance
o IA5: Leadership and management

5.5 There will not be any overall judgements for current performance or prospects 
for improvement, but a judgement for each of the five inspection areas.

5.6 There still remain four judgements for each inspection area:
o Excellent: Very strong, sustained performance and practice
o Good: Strong features, although minor aspects may require 

improvement.
o Adequate and needs improvement: Strengths outweigh weakness, but 

important aspects require improvement.
o Unsatisfactory and needs urgent improvement: Important weaknesses 

outweigh any strength.

5.7 There will be three levels of follow-up activity:
o Estyn review – this has replaced Estyn monitoring
o Significant improvement
o Special Measures

Monitoring visits will continue to take place at broadly similar intervals 
following the core inspection, i.e. 12 – 18 months later for Estyn review and 
significant improvement, and regular monitoring visits for schools requiring 
special measures. Schools and the local authority will be given 10 working 
days’ notice of follow-up monitoring visits.

5.8 If the inspection team identify an area of the school’s work that is considered 
to be interesting or innovative, the school will be asked to provide a case 
study in relation to this aspect(s) of its work. This case study will be published 
on the Estyn website as a means of sharing best practice.
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 The Local authority’s ambition is to be ranked in the top ten performing local 
authorities in Wales by 2020 and to improve the capacity of leadership teams to 
bring about improvement so that no schools are placed in an Estyn follow up 
category.

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 In order to achieve our ambition the local authority will:
 Ensure schools are appropriately supported and challenged by the challenge 

advisers who are deployed by the Central South Consortium;
 Continue to promote and facilitate the self-improving and self-regulating school led 

system, so that school-to-school working results in high standards for all pupils 
and robust peer evaluations that inform judgements and plans;

Page 49



 Continue to use statutory powers through the issuing of notices of concern and 
warning letters when necessary;

 Work in partnership with school leaders to undertake actions that will bring about 
accelerated school improvement.

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES
8.1 The contents of this report relate to the following Wellbeing Objectives:

 Best start to life: Children and young people are equipped with the skills they need 
to be successful learners and confident individuals.

 Through the combined work of school leaders, the local authority and the Central 
South Consortium ensures that effective school-to-school working results in high 
standards for all pupils.  We will work towards children and young people being 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners at each stage of their 
educational journey as well as being confident individuals.

 

Sue Walker, Chief Education Officer Councillor Lisa Mytton 
Portfolio Lead for Education

Page 50



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting.

1.2 To remind scrutiny committee members that they need to consider the requirements 
of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The Committee considers the attached draft work programme and approves, revises 
or amends it as deemed appropriate.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND
3.1 The attached work programme identifies the topics and issues under consideration 

by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be 
identified and included on the programme.

3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 
their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda. 

3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 
Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this.

Date Written 29nd May 2018
Report Author Scrutiny Section
Committee Division Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt
Committee Date 4th June  2018

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 
help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:-

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals. The key outcomes (or components) for Best Start to Life are:

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment 
 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education 
 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people 
 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure that establishes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination. The key outcomes (or components) to support the 
response to this objective include: 

 Making skills work for Merthyr Tydfil: developing the workforce of the future; 
 Developing the environment and infrastructure for business to flourish; 
 Communities protect, enhance and promote our heritage and cultural assets; 
 Developing safer communities; and 
 Supporting and accommodating those most disadvantaged in the housing market.

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside. The key outcomes (or components) for communities to 
protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside include: 

 Minimise environmental damage through prevention of pollution; 
 Maximise efficient use of materials and resources by means of the waste 

hierarchy; 
 Developing good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure and open 

spaces; and 
 Promoting and supporting the use of renewable and low carbon energy.

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health. To 
ensure a holistic approach is met in this objective, the key outcomes (or 
components) for Living Well will include: 

 Safeguarding children and adults who are at risk of harm; 
 Tackling adverse childhood experiences and developing community Resilience; 
 Promoting healthy behaviours and increased levels of physical activity; 
 Promote good emotional wellbeing and improved mental health; 
 Clear and accessible information and advice; and 
 Services that provide people with the ability to live in their own home

Page 52



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent.

3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 
the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act.

3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 
the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions.

Q) Why has the item been placed on a scrutiny work programme?
a. Does this item/topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s Wellbeing 

Objectives and priorities?
b. Is this item/topic relating to service performance concerns?
c. Is this item/topic of significant public interest?
d. Has the item/topic got budgetary implications?
e. Is this a item/topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes?
f. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources?

Q) What is the specific role of the committee?
           This will depend on the item – for example the role could be:

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department

b. to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose
c. to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue 
d. to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation / review
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue

Q) What outcome is the committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item?

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council 

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes.
c. To receive an overview presentation.
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy

Page 53



e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 
pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work. 

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives / other plan / other strategy.

g. Improvement in service delivery

Q) What information does the committee need to fulfil this role / achieve 
this outcome? 
What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas / 
solutions.

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information?
Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations?
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer 
ready for the meeting. 

Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend?
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. 
You may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. 
community centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some 
people find the formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more 
appropriate to see first-hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining 
information on e.g. waste sites, regeneration projects etc.

Q) Method of Scrutiny?
Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to:

a. Consider an item at a single meeting;
b. Consider an item over a series of meetings;
c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 

to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice);

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days);
e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee;
f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views;
g. Seeking the views of service users/carers and/or the general public (public 

calls for evidence).

Performance and Scrutiny Department
MTCBC

Page 54



BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future:
Wellbeing in our 
Community

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website

Full Council 4th April 2018 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

No

Page 55

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 

APPENDIX I

Page 56



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Date / Timing Overarching Item Linked to MTCBC’s 
Wellbeing Objectives 

(Corporate Objectives)?

Officer & Cabinet Member  (Other)
Scrutiny Focus 

Changes in the ESTYN 
Inspection Reporting 
Framework for schools

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Joe Colsey

Scrutiny and Challenge: - to receive details of 
Changes in the ESTYN Self Evaluation Reporting (SER) 
Framework.

FIRST DRAFT Scrutiny 
Report - Review of 
Attendance & 
Attainment in Primary 
& Secondary Schools

BS Best Start to Life  Task & Finish Group. Cllr H 
Jones, Cllr C Davies, and Cllr S 
Jago

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Task and Finish Group 
has prepared its report for consideration by the full 
Committee. Once agreed it will be progressed to 
Cabinet for consideration

Draft Annual Work 
Programme 2018/19

n/a Task & Finish Group. Cllr H 
Jones, Cllr C Davies, and Mrs R 
Lazell

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To consider the draft 
Annual Work programme for 2018/19 as prepared by 
the Task and Finish group of Cllr H Jones, Cllr C. 
Davies, and Mrs R Lazell.

4th June 2018

Heolgerrig Community 
School and Trelewis 
Primary School.

BS Best Start to Life  Head teachers of Heolgerrig 
Community School and 
Trelewis Primary School.

Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Head teachers of these 
schools will be attending the meeting to share good 
practice in their respective schools.

Public Services Board 
and its role in 
Education

BS Best Start to Life  Lesley Lawson RCT 
Partnerships team / Sue 
Walker

Scrutiny and Challenge: - Focus on Wellbeing and 
how this has an impact /have an effect on Schools. 
How this delivers educational outcomes.

16th July 2018 Learning Resource 
Bases (LRB’s) and  
Educated Other Than 
At School (EOTAS) 
Update 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- To further discuss and 
consider any changes to the provision and re-
alignment of  Learning Resources Bases in the County 
Borough; and  of EOTAS provision.

P
age 57



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Data Report – 
Foundation Phase, 
KS1, KS2 and KS3 (to 
also include a verbal 
update on KS4 results, 
which are only being 
made available on 23rd 
August)
 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- to receive a report  on the 
attainment in Foundation Phase, Key Stage 2 and Key 
Stage 3 in 2018. 

School budgets and 
Overview of Building 
Stock (school buildings 
and estates) and 
future plans

BS Best Start to Life  Anthony Lewis / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- A report providing details of   
School budgets and an overview of building Stock 
(school buildings and estates) and future plans.

3rd September 
2018

Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan (WESP) 
– Future Plans

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny & Challenge:- Local authorities are under a 
duty to prepare a plan explaining how it will improve 
the planning of Welsh-medium education, and 
improve standards, together with its targets for 
improvement and progress reports. To debate and 
challenge.

Value for money 
report on education 
services

BS Best Start to Life  Steve Jones/Anthony Lewis Scrutiny & Challenge:- A focus on value for money in 
Education Services. The Chief Finance Officer to 
attend the meeting together with the  Head of 
School Planning & Improvement

Central South 
Consortium 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker  
/ Mike Glavin (Managing 
Director of Central South 
Consortium)

To meet with Mike Glavin (Managing Director of 
Central South Consortium). The Focus is yet to be 
decided by the Committee.

15th October 
2018

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) 
Framework 
(Inspection Area 1)

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer 
on a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element.

P
age 58



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Update on Nursery 
Sufficiency and 30 
Hour Childcare

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:-  Local authorities are 
required to undertake Childcare Sufficiency 
Assessments (CSAs) under Section 26 of the 2006 
Childcare Act on the understanding that local 
authorities are best placed to understand and 
respond to local needs. To receive progress report on 
Nursery Sufficiency and 30 Hour Childcare.

NEETS Strategy 2018 -
2021

BS Best Start to Life  Chris Hole /  Cllr Lisa Mytton / 
Sue Walker

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To Inform the Scrutiny 
Committee of the Not in Education, Employment or 
Training Strategy (2018-21) and the progress that has 
been made against this agenda in line with the 
previous strategy.  The NEETS Strategy identifies 
some critical areas to be progressed if the authority 
is to continue its progress. 

26th 
November 
2018

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) 
Framework 
(Inspection Area 2)

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Scrutiny Committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element.

Report on the final 
verified KS4 data and 
results.

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:-  to update Scrutiny on the 
performance of schools at key stage 4 (KS4) in public 
external examinations 2017/18

Categorisation of 
schools

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- In January 2015, the Welsh 
Government introduced a new categorisation system 
that considered each school’s standards alongside 
the school’s capacity to improve so as to understand 
the level of support the school needed. To receive a 
report detailing the latest categorisation of schools 
and improvement progress.

14th January 
2019

Report on Exclusions 
and Attendance

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:-  The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer  
on local and national statistics / figures on 

P
age 59



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Attendance and Exclusions.

ESTYN Self Evaluation 
Reporting (SER) 
Framework 
(Inspection Area 3)

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- The Scrutiny Committee will 
receive a report from the Chief Education Officer on 
a specific Local Government Education Services 
Inspection Framework element.

Central South 
Consortium 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge: - Theme to be agreed. KS4 
results will have been finalised by now.

4th March 
2019 Self-Improving Schools BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue 

Walker/Joe Colsey/Schools
Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Scrutiny Committee 
will receive a report from the Chief Education Officer  
and schools on how schools support and challenge 
each other to improve

Update on Additional 
Learning Needs 
Services (ALN) to 
incorporate PIU’s, 
LRB’s. 

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker Scrutiny and Challenge:- This meeting will have an  
(Additional Learning Needs) ALN focus.

8th April 2019

Greenfield School 
Outreach service 
update

BS Best Start to Life  Cllr Lisa Mytton / Sue Walker / 
Greenfield School

Scrutiny and Challenge:- During the visit to the 
school in December 2017, the school raised a 
number of points which the scrutiny committee took 
forward on the schools behalf and these were 
responded to by the Chief Education Officer. The 
Chair and Vice Chair have agreed that the school will 
be invited to attend a meeting once the new work 
programme is prepared after the AGM in May 2018. 
Areas of concern were - Continuity of Funding. 
Current number of INSET days per year is insufficient. 
Eligibility / criteria for admission to Greenfield. 
Future accommodation needs of Greenfield to be 
considered as well. To also receive details of the 
Outreach Service.

P
age 60



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change)

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements.

Additional items to consider for Work

Date to be 
confirmed

To invite / visit Heads and Chairs of Governance at the following schools :-
 Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Santes Tudful
 Pen-y-dre High School
 Ynysowen Community Primary School
 Visit Educated Other Than at School (EOTAS) to see what provision is available (before 8th April).
 Visit LRB’s (Learning Resource Basis) as part of the programme of visits.

Date to be 
confirmed

Date to be 
confirmed

Date to be 
confirmed

P
age 61



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Post 16 Home to school transport- Post consultation
	5 New Estyn Inspection Framework for Schools
	7 Draft Annual Work Programme 2018/19
	Appenxix 1


